SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
SECOND SPECI AL SESSI ON
June 10, 2015
1:11 p.m

[Note: The neeting was held in Anchorage, Alaska at the
Anchorage Legislative Information Ofice]

1:11: 29 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MucKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
meeting to order at 1:11 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Representttative Kurt O son; Senator Cathy G essel; G ndy
Moore, Self, Anchorage; Butch More, Self, Anchorage;
Trevor Storrs, Executive Director, Alaska Children's Trust,
Anchorage; Laurie Morton, Executive Director, Council on
Donestic Violence and Sexual Assault, Departnment of Public
Safety; Sheila Lankford, Self, Anchorage; Betty Brickle,
Self, Wsilla; Charles MKee, Self, Anchorage; Pol |y
Andrews, Self, Anchorage; Mranda Wlso, Self, Chugi ak;
Toni Roberts, Self, Anchorage; Tanya Zanura-Dey, Standing
Toget her Against Rape (STAR), Anchorage; Sanmantha M ntz,
Advocate, STAR, Anchorage; Senator Ma Costello; Sergey
Kul i kou, Advocate, STAR, Anchorage; Robin Smth, Self,
Anchorage; Pat O Hera, Self, Anchorage; Peggy Brown,
Executive Director, Al aska Network on Donestic Violence and
Sexual Assault, Juneau; Karol Libbey, Self, Anchorage;
Wl liam Theur, Self, Anchorage; Steve Pifer, Self, Chugi ak;



Evonne Beavers, Self, Anchorage; Jennifer Woley, Self,
Anchorage; Zhevia C Peterson, Self, Anchorage; Andy
Hol | eman, Presi dent, Anchorage Education Association,
Anchorage; Alyse Glvin, Self, Anchorage; Jessica Cer,
Al aska Public Affairs Manager, Planned Parenthood Votes
North West, Anchorage; Vera Bedard, Self, Anchorage; Steven
Aufrecht, Self, Anchorage; Di ana Hansen, Self, Anchorage;
Mary Savage, Self, Anchorage; Kenni Linden, Self, Palner;
G etchen Whenhoff, Self, Anchorage; Judy Mller, Self,
Anchorage; Laura Pierre, Staff, Senator Anna MacKinnon;
Representative Geran Tarr; Representative Charisse Mllett.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Barb Amarak, Executive Director, Bering Sea Wnen's G oup,
None; Allison Currey, Self, Juneau; Charlene Ditton, Self,
Homer; Ron Fur, School Teacher, Anchorage; M chelle Church,
Self, Palnmer; Bert Cottle, Self, Wsilla; Daniel Lynch,
Self, Soldotna; Marcie Hawkins, Self, Sutton; Deborah
Wllianms, Self; Chris Riton, Superintendent, Galena Cty
School District, Galena; Santa Caus, Self, North Pole;
Catherine Lay, Self, Wshington State; Any Bollenbach,
Sel f, Hormer.

SUWARY

CSHB 44(FIN)
SEX ABUSE/ ASSAULT/ DATI NG VI OL PREV. PROGS
CSHB 44(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

#hb44

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 44(FIN)

"An Act relating to sexual abuse and sexual assault
awar eness and prevention efforts in public schools;
and relating to dating violence and abuse awareness
and prevention efforts in public schools."”

1: 13: 40 PM

CI NDY MOORE, SELF, ANCHORAGE, stated that she appreciated
the work on the legislation. She felt that there were a
couple of itenms that she would like to see nodified, and
shared that she had already worked with Co-Chair MacKi nnon
on those <concerns. She shared that her daughter was

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



recently killed by her boyfriend, and she felt that she
needed to work to prevent further teenage dating violence.
She stressed that this was a very serious 1issue, and
chil dren shoul d be taught to protect thensel ves.

BUTCH MOORE, SELF, ANCHORACE, agreed with the coments from
Ms. Moore. He felt that the original |egislation was sinple
and straightforward. He did not agree with many of the
additions to the legislation from the Senate Education
Commttee. He remarked that there were sone itens that he
felt should be renoved. He felt that there should be sone
adj ustnments made to the itens. He wanted to elininate itens
4, 20, and 22. He stated that there should, at |east, be
sone defined education outlined, so there would not be an
undue burden on sone volunteers. He felt that the
vol unteers should have the education to recognize violence
and sexual abuse. He felt that the nane "Bree" be added to
legislation to read "Erin's Law and Bree's Law' under
Article 6(a). He felt that Bree's story was inportant for
students to understand and recognize. He felt that the
education in the legislation was like CPR training. It was
not for the person who was in the unhealthy relationship.
The training was for peers and witnesses to provide tools
to provide rescue to the victim He remarked that Bree may
still be alive, if the education were available at the tine
of her deat h.

1: 20: 37 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that she hoped that children
woul d understand that they can turn to appropriate avenues
for help and resources to stop the viol ence.

M. More shared that he had seen an advertisenent about
wearing flotation devices. He stated that there were 783
reported cases of nolestation of children, but only 10
percent of cases were actually reported. Therefore, there
were approximtely 30,000 victins per year. He added that
59 percent of all Alaskan wonen have reported being sexua
assaul ted, raped, or physically abused. He shared that he
had heard sone coments regarding the parenting of Bree. He
stressed that he was in the 81 percent of parents
nati onwi de, who did not realize the issue. He remarked that
only 5 percent of children who are abused in a dating
relationship would tell their parents. He felt that the
children do not often tell their parents, because, in nobst
cases, the father would go to jail.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



Vi ce-Chair M cciche expressed synpathy for Bree's death. He
felt that the intention of the legislation was to ensure
that Bree's loss was not in vain, and to hel p other young
people to recognize the warning signs. He felt that their
i ntenti ons were honorabl e.

Senator O son expressed concern regarding the elenment of
soci al engineering for parents. He did not believe that the
school should be the ultimate authority over the parents’
i ntended val ue system for the children. He wondered how the
parent would be protected, if the child wongfully accused
the parent of nolestation. He felt that there could be sone
teenage rebellion that would negatively affect the parent.
M. More replied that Rhode |sland passed the "Lindsey Ann
Burke Act" in 2007, which was intended to prevent teen
dating violence. By 2014 the nunber of teen dating violence
incidents had declined in half. He stressed that Al aska was
nunber one in the nation for nmen killing wonen, nmen raping
wonen, sexual assault, and six time the national average of
child nolestation. He stressed that he |ost his daughter,
so his parental rights were stricken

1: 28: 13 PM

TREVOR STORRS, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CHI LDREN S TRUST,
ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the legislation, and its
current version. He stressed that traumatic events in a
child's life have a dramatic effect on the brain. He felt
that the discussions regarding trauma in the comunity had
He reiterated that Al aska had the highest rate of donestic
and sexual abuse.

1: 34: 10 PM

LAURIE MORTON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, COUNCIL ON DQVESTIC
VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

stated that she did not have the opportunity to review the
commttee substitute. She remarked that the council had
been working on the issue in recent years.

1: 39: 36 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon acknow edged Representatives MQuire,
Tarr, and MIllett; and Senator MQ@ire for their work on
t he | egislation.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



1:40: 33 PM

SHEI LA LANKFORD, SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of
the legislation. She shared that she had a long famly
history in Al aska. She shared a personal story about famly
abuse.

1: 43: 46 PM

BETTY BRI CKLE, SELF, WASILLA, stated that she had been a
victim of donmestic violence and sexual abuse. She spoke in
support of the |egislation.

1: 50: 12 PM

CHARLES MCKEE, SELF, ANCHORAGE, felt that the issue around
the legislation was related to funding. He shared sone
points regarding some crimnal cases. He expressed concern
regardi ng children being used as commpdities.

1: 53: 46 PM
AT EASE

1: 54: 10 PM
RECONVENED

1: 54: 27 PM

POLLY ANDREWS, SELF, ANCHORAGE, shared that she had spent
her childhood in the Yukon Kuskokwi m Delta. She stated that
there should be a consideration for children who are
negl ected. She remarked that education was essential in
preventing child abuse. She shared that she experienced
sexual abuse as a child. stressed that the curricul um nust

be culturally conpetent. She felt that the bill would
create safety for Alaska's children. She understood that
the bill could not save every child.

1: 59: 23 PM

MYRANDA WALSO, SELF, CHUQ AK, shared that she had first-
hand experience in seeing the need for education and
prevention anmong the nost vul nerable. She had seed toddlers
who were traumatized by sexual abuse. She remarked that
nost children needed basic needs, and remarked that nost
children could be well adjusted adults.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



2:03: 02 PM

TONI ROBERTS, SELF, ANCHORAGE, felt that the politics
around this legislation was unacceptable. She testified in
support of the bill in its original form She shared that
her young son had been raped by a nei ghbor.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon wondered if M. Roberts was famliar
with t he current commttee substi t ut e. VB. Roberts
indicated in the affirmative.

2:07: 01 PM

TANYA ZAMURA-DEY, STANDI NG TOGETHER AGAI NST RAPE (STAR),
ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of the legislation. She felt
the bill should have been passed at the tinme it was
originally introduced. She stressed that there were extrene
statistics about the high rates of sexual assault in
Al aska. She felt that Erin's Law would help to prevent
child abuse and sexual assault.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon stated that the phone nunber for STAR
was 276-7273.

2:10: 05 PM

SAVANTHA M NTZ, ADVOCATE, STAR, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support
of the bill. She felt that nost recent version contained
beneficial additions. She encouraged the passage of Erin's
Law and Bree's Law specifically. She felt that children
should be taught how to have agency over their body and
safety. She stressed that each child deserved safety
i nformation.

2:13: 06 PM

SERGEY KULI KOU, ADVOCATE, STAR, ANCHORAGE, testified in
support of the Ilegislation, but stated that he would
outline some concerns with the commttee substitute. He
felt that the training should be offered annually for all
teachers. He felt that there should be a definition of "sex
based materials." He |ooked at Section 17, and renarked
that the new teachers should receive the training sooner
than two years.

2:18: 54 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



ROBIN SM TH, SELF, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of the
| egislation. She stressed that Al aska had a very serious
problem wth donestic violence and sexual abuse. She
remarked that there were extrene negative consequences to
sexual abuse. She stressed that the costs related to nental
health rehabilitation were much greater than the cost of
preventi on.

2:22: 19 PM

BARB AMARAK, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, BERI NG SEA WOMEN S GROUP
NOVE (via tel econference), spoke in support of the original
| egi sl ati on. She shared that she had observed the need for
sexual assault and teen dating violence awareness in
schools. She stressed that the purpose of schooling was to
support and educate the children to be strong, healthy, and
able to make w se choices. She remarked that there were
many organi zations that would provide third-party support
and expertise to coll aborate on the provision of prevention
education for the schools and communiti es.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wondered if M. Amarak had read the
Senat e Finance version of the bill. M. Amarak replied that
she did not support the Senate Education Commttee's
version of the |egislation.

2:24:52 PM

PAT O HERA, SELF, ANCHORAGE, shared that there was a nusic
teacher who had sexually abused third grade girls in class.
She spoke in support of the |egislation. She stated that
the principal had ignored dozens of conplaints from
parents. She felt that there was a culture of indifference
at the tine. She opposed sone of the changes in the bill
because she thought that the bill was a better than the
stat us quo.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if Ms. O Hera was famliar with
the nobst recent conmttee substitute. Ms. O Hera replied
that she had only read the first page. She encouraged the
committee to keep the legislation very sinple.

2:29:50 PM

PEGGY BROWN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA NETWORK ON DQOVESTI C
VI CLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, JUNEAU, testified in support
of the current bill. She remarked that there were sone

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



i ssues that she would like to inprove with the support of
the commttee. She shared that she had been addressed by
sone conm ttee nenbers regarding reducing the rate of child
abuse and sexual assault. She felt that the passage of the
law woul d create a space for children to be resilient. She
shared a story about a child who was abused by their
grandf ather, and the result was not in favor of the child.

2:34: 32 PM

KARCL LI BBEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the
| egi sl ation. She shared that she had a grandchild who had
been sexually abused in high school. She remarked that her
grandchild had not been successful in life after the abuse
i nci dent .

Vice-Chair Mcciche wondered how the training my have
af fected her granddaughter's life. M. Libby replied that
the training may not have affected her granddaughter's
life. She felt that the |egislation my encourage others to
come forward and halting the abuse inmediately.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked how the Ilegislation may have
affected her granddaughter's |ife, had the law been in
pl ace twenty years prior. M. Libby responded that there
was no one in her school that could see the signs of abuse.

2:38:24 PM

WLLI AM THEUR, SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the
| egislation. He remarked that the bill outlined a very
conplex comunity. He stated that there should be a
recognition of a substantial financi al support. The

requi renment should be funded. He shared that his famly had
been affected by donestic viol ence and sexual assault.

2:40:32 PM

STEVE PIFER, SELF, CHUGQ AK, testified in support of the
| egislation. He stated that his granddaughter was sexually
abused by her father. He stated that his granddaughter's
father had been sexually abused as a child, and felt that
he may have received help, had Erin's Law been in place 15
years prior. He felt that sexual abuse nust been dealt wth
in a straightforward manner, and the victins should not be
hol ding onto shane. He encouraged the comrittee to add the

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



education conponent as a requirement for the Al aska
Judi ci al System

2:43: 05 PM

EVONNE BEAVERS, SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of
the legislation. She stated that her daughter had great
teachers. She furthered that her daughter had been sexually
assaulted by the boys in her classroom Her daughter had
devel oped an issue with hearing voices, and she eventually
needed to be sent out of state to an institution. She
stressed that children nust be educated regarding sexual
abuse.

2:49: 07 PM

ALLI SON  CURREY, SELF, JUNEAU (via t el econference),
testified in support of the original legislation, but did
not support the changes made in the Senate Education
Commttee. She shared that she was involved in a three
year, unhealthy relationship. She remarked that she did not
know the signs of dating violence until she was in her
early twenties. She stressed that youth nust be equipped
with the tools, resources, and know edge necessary to stay
safe. She felt that the law should require a mnmandatory
curricul um

2:51:47 PM

CHARLENE DI TTON, SELF, HOVER (via teleconference),
encouraged the commttee to pass the version that passed
from the House. She objected to the "sexual analysis" in
Section 4. She stated that Al aska was a diverse state with
many cultures and behavior patterns. She felt that school
age children needed Erin's Law and Bree's Law. She offered
that adding days onto the school vyear may help to
facilitate the prograns.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon encouraged Ms. Ditton to review Section
4. She explained that anyone could submt witten testinony
via email .

2:53:30 PM

RON FUR, SCHOOL TEACHER, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the original HB 44. He had concerns
related to the commttee substitutes. He addressed two

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



conmponents of the Conmittee Substitute that would directly
i npact teachers in Alaska. He stated that the conmttee
substitute did not address the inpact the requirenents
woul d have on teachers related to trainings. The second
conponent was in Section 14 related to required physica
exans for teachers. Many districts did not have access to
physi cal exans. He had heard overwhel m ng support of the
| aw from t eachers.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon  pointed out t hat the Conmmttee
Substitute | anguage read "may" in Section 14.

2:57:04 PM

M CHELLE  CHURCH, SELF, PALMER (via teleconference),
testified in support of the original version of HB 44. She
believed Section 4 included an opt-out provision. She
appreciated that sonme additions from the Senate Education
Conmittee had been renoved. She believed Erin's and Bree's
Law needed to be passed. She spoke to her daughter's
personal experience. She believed if her daughter had
recei ved educati on on appropriate i nteractions her
experience may have been different. Her heart went out to
peopl e who had been inpacted by sexual abuse.

2:59:50 PM

BERT COTTLE, SELF, WASILLA (via teleconference), encouraged
the commttee to return to the original version of the
| egislation, that had passed from the House. He shared that
school districts were already teaching prevention, and saw
zero downside to the curriculum He felt that sone cases
could have been prevented, if the legislation had already
been in place. He remarked that the program could teach
students to recogni ze abuse signs anong their peers.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered M. Cottle had read the current
comittee substi tute. M. Cottle replied in t he
affirmati ve.

Co-Chair MucKinnon asked if M. Cottle read the current
Senate Finance conmttee substitute. M. Cottle replied
that he had read three different versions.

Co-Chair W©MacKi nnon wondered if M. Cottle had read version
F of the bill. M. Cottle replied in the affirmative. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



felt that all school districts should be required to teach
t he program

3:02: 56 PM

DANI EL LYNCH, SELF, SOLDOTNA  (via t el econference),
testified in support of the legislation in its original
form He felt that the legislation should have been passed
20 years prior. He did not believe that there were adequate
| eaders in the state to pass the legislation. He insinuated
that sone House nenbers were "predators, perverts, and
pedophiles.” He noted that there were prograns funded in
the school districts that protected children, and hoped
that there would be additional prograns that would protect
chi | dren.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon encouraged the testinony to Dbe
respectful to the nenbers of the |egislature.

3: 05: 25 PM

MARCIE HAWKI NS, SELF, SUTTON (via teleconference), felt
that there should be nore specifics regarding crimnal
background checks. She testified 1in support of the
legislation in its original form She stressed that the

focus of the bill should be on sexual assault prevention in
school s.
3:08: 27 PM

DEBORAH W LLI AM5, SELF (via teleconference), testified in
support of the legislation. She spoke to the provisions in
the commttee substitute that she felt interfered with the
i npl ementation of Erin's Law. She felt that the |egislation
was unconstitutional, because it had nore than one
appropriate subject matter. She felt that Section 2 as
related to parent notification was inconsistent with the
bill's intent, and provided undue burden to educators. She
added that Section 6 would change the existing | aw.

3:13: 06 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if M. WIllians was famliar
wth the current conmttee substitute. Ms. WIIliams believe
that her testinony referred to the current comittee
substitute.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon renmarked that Ms. WIllians' coments did
not seem consistent with the current version.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche stated that version P of t he
| egislation had a provision that allowed a student to be
excused from the training at a witten request from a
par ent .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon encouraged Ms. WIllianms' to submt her
comments as related to version F via enuil

3:15:14 PM

CHRI'S RITON, SUPERI NTENDENT, GALENA CITY SCHOOL DI STRICT,
GALENA (via teleconference), spoke to Section 4. He
encouraged the commttee to consider "opt out" |anguage,
rather than witten permssion. He felt that the current
| anguage would limt the schools to develop prograns to
best serve the students. He stated that he would like the
change to the last |line of Section 4 to read, "unless opt
out forns are obtained from student's parent or |egal
guar di an.

Co-Chair MacKinnon shared that it was «current state
statute. M. Riton replied that there were opt out
provi sions applied to some student surveys.

Co- Chair MacKinnon wanted to ensure an understanding of
current state statute. M. Riton stressed that the schools
may not receive proper data through the bill's current
| anguage.

M. Riton supported the change for state nmandated training
for school districts. He stated that school districts had
extensive responsibilities for training. He |ooked at
Section 24, and supported the establishment of the Al aska
Safe Children Act Task Force. He felt that the task force
woul d provide guidance to ensure the best curriculum to
neet the new mandat es.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if Vice-Chair M cciche wanted
to conment on Section 4. Vice-Chair Mcciche replied in the
negati ve.

3:19:22 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 12 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



SANTA  CLAUS, SELF, NCRTH POLE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the legislation in its original
form He felt that the majority of Al askans were in support
of age appropriate sexual abuse and assault aware and
prevention education for grades K-12. The felt that the
legislation would result in a safer environnent for
children. He felt that there would not be additional costs
to school districts that claim to have simlar existing
pr ogr ans.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if M. Claus was able to review
the commttee substitute. M. Claus replied in the
affirmative, and furthered that he was in support of the
original version

3:21: 27 PM

CATHERI NE LAY, SELF, WASHI NGTON STATE (via tel econference),
testified in support of the legislation in its original
form She shared a story about her stepson abusing her
st epdaughter. She remarked that she had famly in Al aska,
and stressed that the legislation was essential to
preventing sexual viol ence.

3:27:59 PM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon shared that witten comments could be
submtted via email.

3:28: 28 PM

AMY BOLLENBACH, SELF, HOMER (via tel econference), testified
in support of the bill in the three-page version. She
stated that the current version's purpose was stil
uncl ear, but remarked that Section 4 was an inprovenent.

3:30: 50 PM

JENNI FER WOOLEY, SELF, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of the
| egislation. She remarked that she never received an
educati on about healthy relationships.

3:33: 03 PM

ZHEVI A C. PETERSON, SELF, ANCHORACE, spoke in support of
the legislation. She stated that she was currently studying
Sociology related to social work and public health. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 13 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



felt that the bill should return to its original form She
expressed concern regarding the high rate of child sexua
abuse in Al aska.

3:34:31 PM

ANDY HOLLEMAN, PRESIDENT, ANCHORAGE EDUCATI ON ASSCCI ATI ON
ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of the purpose of the
| egislation, but felt that there needed to be substanti al
processes regarding sone of the additions to the bill. He
stressed his support for the original formof the bill, and
felt that the other areas could be addressed at a later
dat e.

3:35:47 PM

ALYSE GALVIN, SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the
legislation. She felt that the education was extrenely
inportant to the state. She remarked that the children
should be protected. She felt that this was the right
direction to take. She appreciated the work of the
| egi sl ature. She felt that Section 4 should be renoved from
the bill. She recommended that Sections 20 and 22 should
also be renoved from the legislation. She added that she
felt that she would have had a better chance to be
successful, if she had the education and tools that the
| egi sl ati on woul d provi de.

3:39:04 PM

JESSI CA CLER, ALASKA PUBLIC AFFAIRS MANAGER, PLANNED
PARENTHOOD VOTES NORTH WEST, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of
the legislation. She stressed that teachers needed the
skills to recognize victins of abuse, and students needed
the tools to address the problem She felt that the current
version was very close to the Al aska Safe Children Act. She
stressed that Al aska had denonstrated support of the bill.

3:41:16 PM

M. Lynch wondered if he should focus on his objections, or
whet her he should begin with the point from when he was
previ ously nuted. Co-Chair McKinnon replied that he should
focus on what could be done to enhance bill

M. Lynch stated that there should have been a bill passed
20 or 30 years prior. He stated that there was noney for

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 14 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



ot her programs, so there should be noney set aside for this
program as well. He hoped that the original |egislation
woul d be adopt ed.

3:43:30 PM
AT EASE

3:44: 00 PM
RECONVENED

3:44: 27 PM

VERA BEDARD, SELF, ANCHORAGE, shared that she had witten a
pl ay about her famly's sexual abuse. She remarked that she
had discl osed her abuse, but it was hidden away. She spoke
to the opt-out provision.

3:48: 31 PM

STEVEN AUFRECHT, SELF, ANCHORAGE, shared concerns regardi ng
the inpact of how many children would be affected by the
changes in the commttee substitute.

3:51:55 PM

DI ANA HANSEN, SELF, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of the
original version of the legislation. She felt that the
current version was better than the Senate Education
conmmittee substitute. She shared that she had been abused
as a child.

3:54:48 PM

MARY SAVAGE, SELF, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the
legislation in its original form She shared that she had
been a victim of sexual assault and donestic violence. She
felt that her sexual abuse as a child led to her donestic
vi ol ence experience as an adult. She shared that she had
educati on about sexual abuse, but it was too late. She felt
that sexual abuse education should occur at an extrenely
young age. She felt that sexual predators were not born
t hat way, because it was a | earned behavi or.

3:56: 50 PM

KENNI LI NDEN, SELF, PALMER, spoke in support of the
legislation in its original form essentially Section 15 of

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 15 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



the Conmittee Substitute. She shared that she |oved her
community, and was proud of its residents. She stated that
she had served on the MatSu School Board as a student, and
she had been involved in nmany different aspects of
education. She shared that she had been sexually assaulted
at age 15, and w shed that she had received information
about dating abuse in the classroom

4:00:19 PM

GRETCHEN WHENHOFF, SELF, ANCHORAGE, shared a persona
experience. She testified in support of the |egislation.

4:03: 22 PM

JUDY M LLER, SELF, ANCHORAGE, spoke in support of the
original version of the legislation. She did not support
t he | anguage from the Senat e Educat i on Committee
Substitute. She felt that she was not qualified to address
many of the changes in the current version.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

4:06: 28 PM

Co-Chair MacKi nnon thanked those who had testified, and
asked the commttee to stand to honor those who had
testified on the | egislation.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon stated that there would be anmendnents
offered within the hour.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared some thoughts on the process of
t he | egislation.

4:11: 38 PM
RECESSED

6: 02: 32 PM
RECONVENED

6: 03: 20 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche MOVED to ADOPT Anendnent 1 (copy on
file).

Co- Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for di scussi on.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 16 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



LAURA PI ERRE, STAFF, SENATOR ANNA NMACKI NNON, stated that
Amendnent 1 related to the Suicide Prevention Training,
whi ch was passed in 2012. Currently the training was set to
expire on June 30, 2016. The anendnent would allow the
training to continue each year until the expiration, then
the training would be a part of the legislation at a two-
year interval. The anendnent would change the task force
from devel oping curriculum to only "making recommendations
to DEED', which would solve the issue of separation of
powers as it relates to the constitution.

Senator Dunl eavy queried the word change in the anendnent.
Ms. Pierre replied that the change the word "devel oping” to
"“providing recomendations to the Departnment of Education
and Early Devel opnent."

Co- Chair MacKi nnon explained the exact Ilocation of the
amendnment within the bill.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon W THDREW her objection. There being NO
OBJECTI QON, Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Vice-Chair M cciche MOVED to ADOPT Anendment 2.
Co- Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for di scussi on.

Ms. Pierre explained that Anmendnent 2 related to Section
15, specifically on page 8, lines 1 and 2. The bill
currently stated that the governing body of each school
district was required to provide notice to parents,
students, and staff. The anendnent would renove "parents”
and "staff" to read, "provide notifications to the parent."
The anendnment was a request from DEED, and was written in
Senator Gardner's version of the |egislation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon W THDREW her objection. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche MOVED to ADOPT Amendnent 3.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon OBJECTED for discussion.

Ms. Pierre explained that Amendnent 3 related to mandatory
reporting of volunteers. Currently the mandatory vol unteer

portion was restrictive for the volunteer hours and the
reporting. The anendnent broadened the restrictions to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 17 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



include the items listed on lines 6 through line 10. The
anendnent allowed for the volunteers to have access to the
sane training as school staff as provided in the
| egi sl ation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon W THDREW her objection. There being NO
OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

6: 08: 07 PM

Vice-Chair M cciche MOVED to ADOPT Anendment 4.
Co- Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for di scussi on.

Ms. Pierre explained that Amendnent 4 would delete Section
14, which was physical examnations for teachers. She
remarked that there was sone concern that teachers in rural
Alaska may be limted in their access to health -care
provi der service for a physical exam nation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if Senator O son wanted to explain
further the anendnent.

Senat or O son explained that Section 14 would be
duplicative, because they were already required to have
physi cal exams. He stated that the anmendnment would clear up
sonme conf usi on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon MAI NTAI NED her OBJECTI ON to Anendment 4,
and set it aside.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche MOVED Conceptual Amendnment 5. Co-Chair
MacKi nnon OBJECTED for DI SCUSSI ON.

Vice-Chair Mcciche explained Conceptual Amendnent 5. He
stated that he would like to delay the effective dates for
Sections 4, and Sections 20 through 23, and the addition of
Amendnent 3 until June 30 2017 in order to fully understand
the inpacts of the changes. He felt that the delay could
work with the Task Force.

Co- Chair WMacKi nnon wondered if the amendnent could be held
until the following day to allow time to draft an
amendnent .

Ms. Pierre explained that the effective dates would be
applicable to Sections 4, 20, and 22. Vice-Chair M cciche

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 18 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



agreed, with the addition of Sections 21 and 23, because
they were the same subject matter.

Co-Chair MacKinnon wanted to hold the anmendnent until
8:00am the followi ng day. Vice-Chair Mcciche replied that
he was content with waiting until the follow ng day.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon announced that she was not opposed to
t he change.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon MAI NTAI NED her OBJECTI ON to Anmendnent 5.

6:13:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR, shared that there had been sone
concern about the unfunded mandates early in the session
She stated that there was a review of the different
responsibilities as it relates to the district paynents for
teachers. She stated that the physical exam nations may be
a cost savers, in consideration of the overall costs of the
districts. She understood that there was a concern of the
availability of receiving a physical exam in a rural
communities. The |anguage could be expanded to include the
village health aides, and other individuals, so there could
alleviate the pressure to travel to hub comunities.

Representative Tarr stressed that there was strong support
of the mandatory | anguage, so the school districts would be
required to offer the curriculum She understood that
parental rights should be respected, and she noted that
parents had the right to renove their child from any
curricul um

Vice-Chair Mcciche stressed that the bill would protect
Al aska's youth. He renmarked that there were itens in the
bill that were the result of a conprom se. He wondered if
the bill was a "clean bill" for Erin and Bree's Law.

6:17: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  CHARI SSE M LLETT, expl ai ned that t he
original intent of the legislation was included in the
current version of the bill. She remarked that there were
some other portions of the bill, and she found sone nerit

in those additions. She stressed that the ultimte goal of
the current version provided a satisfactory conprom se. She
expressed concern about the addition of the task force. She

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 19 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



stressed that the purpose of the task force should be
focused on examning sonme solutions for issues wthin
soci ety.

Senator Dunleavy surm sed that the House did not support
sone itens in the Senate Education version of the bill. He
assunmed that the House did not support the opt-in portion
and wondered what other itens that the House may not have
support ed.

6:19:32 PM
AT EASE

6: 20: 06 PM
RECONVENED

6: 20: 10 PM

Senator Dunleavy queried the issues wthin the Senate
Education Committee Substitute. Representative Mllett
replied that the Senate Education Committee Substitute made
t he program optional, which only maintained the status quo.
There was al so an opt-out for school districts, which would
not carry forth a law. The version also required parents to
"opt-in", which would be a burden to the school districts.

Senator Dunleavy wondered if those three itens were the
only issues that would have prevented the version from
passi ng the House. Representative MIllett replied that she
did not exam ne every issue with each nenber of the House.
She stated that there were some nenbers of the House, who
felt that the bill would have zero inpact. She renarked
that sonme individuals may have had ot her issues.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if the bill would have passed the
House, had those three itens not been incl uded.
Representative MIlett replied that she did not know.

Senator Dunleavy asked if the "pro-life" portion or

"abortion provider" portion would have halted the bill in
the House. Representative MIllett replied that it would
politicize the bill, which was not the original intent of a
child protection bill. The bill was intended to provide
children and teens with the ability to know the difference
between right and wong. The bill was not about abortion or

a political statenment, but rather the safety of children.
The addition of other bills into the legislation was

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 20 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



di si ngenuous, because she did not know the House nenbers’
positions on the other bills.

6: 26: 00 PM

Representative Tarr stressed that there was passion around
this issue, so keeping the legislative "tight" allowed for
nore of a collective effort. The violence prevention
efforts were the nost inportant aspects of the |egislation.

Senator Dunleavy felt that dial ogue was nore inportant than
t he perspective of the press.

Co- Chair MacKinnon stressed that she wanted to outline
| egislation that was beneficial to all Al askans, and wanted
to ensure the safety of all Al askans. She asked for further
comment from Representative Mllett.

Representative MIllett stressed that the |egislation was
tied to passion and heartache, and the purpose of the bil
was to prevent even just one child from experiencing sexual
vi ol ence trauma. She stressed that the bill would not solve
the state's problens. She felt that the legislation was a
positive direction.

6: 30: 03 PM

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon gueri ed Representative Mllett's
position regarding the two held anendnments. Representative
MIllett's agreed with Senator O son's position regarding
t he physical exam nation of teachers. She was uncl ear about
how it was witten in statute, and felt it necessary to
hold the anmendnment until the follow ng day. She shared that
delaying the effective date amendnent was intended to
exam ne the surveys, and how data was collected regarding
the safety of children. She felt that there could be
further clarification through DEED regarding the inpact of
t he amendnent .

Co-Chair MacKi nnon renarked that she would be in contact
with the bill drafters regardi ng Arendnent 3.

CSHB 44(FIN) was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 21 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



6: 33:43 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 6:33 p. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 22 06/10/15 1:11 P. M



